BYLAWS OF

THE VILLAGES OF RANCHO DEL ORO

ASSOCIATION, INC.

Table of Contents

Article	:	Page
1	Definitions	1
2	Functions of the Association	1
3	Meetings of Master Members 3.1 Place of Meetings	1 2 2 3
	3.6 Action by Written Ballot	4
4	Voting Rights	6
5	Directors; Management	7 8 12
	Office 5.5 Vacancies 5.6 Removal of Directors 5.7 Place of Meetings 5.8 Organizational Meetings; Notice 5.9 Other Regular Meetings; Notice 5.10 Special Meetings; Notice 5.11 Adjournment 5.12 Quorum; Required Vote 5.13 Open Meetings; Executive Sessions 5.14 Action By Unanimous Written Consent	. 13 . 14 . 15 . 15 . 15 . 16 . 16

9782.01/AGP84/105a

b	6.1 6.2 6.3 5.6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 6.8 6.9 5.9	TS	7 8 8 8 8 8 9 9
		Financial Officer 2	0
7	7.1 7.2	tees	1
8	8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6 8.7 8.8	Records	1 2 2 2 3 3 3 3
9	Amendm 9.1 B 9.2 N	Statement of Policies and Practices	24
10	Suprem	nacy of Master Declaration 2	≥5

BYLAWS

OF

THE VILLAGES OF RANCHO DEL ORO ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE 1 - Definitions

The terms used herein shall have the same meanings as given to said terms in the Master Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Villages of Rancho Del Oro recorded _______, 1986, File/Page No. 86-_______, Official Records of San Diego County, California ("the Master Declaration"), as the same may from time to time be amended.

ARTICLE 2 - Functions of the Master Association

2.1 Primary Purposes.

2.1.1 The primary purposes of the Master Association are to (i) act as a "management body" for the management, preservation, maintenance, architectural control and improvement of the Project, (ii) promote the health, safety and welfare of the Master Members and (iii) exercise all of the powers and privileges and perform all of the duties and obligations of the Master Association as set forth in the Master Declaration. The Master Association is subject to the limitations, covenants, conditions, restrictions, terms and provisions of the Master Declaration.

2.2 Assessments.

2.2.1 Pursuant to the Article of the Master Declaration entitled "Assessments," it shall be the duty of the Master Board to fix, alter, collect and enforce assessments upon the Owners. Each Owner shall be liable to pay to the Master Association each assessment levied upon such Owner's Unit(s) under the provisions of the Master Declaration.

ARTICLE 3 - Meetings of Master Members

3.1 Place of Meetings.

3.1.1 All meetings of Master Members shall be held within the Master Project or at such other place in San Diego County, California, in reasonable proximity to the Master Project, as may be designated for that purpose from time to time by the Master Board. Unless unusual conditions exist, as determined solely by

the Master Board, Master Members' meetings shall not be held outside of said county.

3.2 Annual (Regular) Meetings.

- 3.2.1 A regular meeting of Master Members shall be held annually. The first annual meeting of Master Members shall be held on such date and at such time as shall be designated by the Master Board, which date shall be within 45 days after the sale and conveyance by Developer, Rancho, Home Building and/or Builders of a majority of the Units, authorized for sale under the first final subdivision public report issued for any portion of the Master Project to purchasers (other than Developer, Rancho, Home Building or Builders), but in no event later than six months after the sale and conveyance by Developer, Rancho, Home Building or a Builder of the first Unit in the Master Project to a purchaser (other than Developer, Rancho, Home Building or a Builder). Subsequent annual meetings of Master Members shall be held on the anniversaries of the first annual meeting of Master Members and shall be held at such time and in such place as may be designated by the Master Board. If the date of the annual meeting as so determined is a legal holiday, then the meeting shall be held on the next-succeeding regular business day, at the same hour.
- 3.2.2 At the annual meeting, Master Members shall elect a Master Board, consider reports of the affairs of the Master Association and transact such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting.

3.3 Special Meetings.

- 3.3.1 Special meetings of Master Members, for any lawful purpose or purposes whatsoever, shall be called by the Master Board upon (i) the vote for such a meeting by a majority of a quorum of the Master Board or (ii) receipt by the Master Board of a written request for such a meeting signed by Master Members representing at least five percent of the total voting power of the Master Association.
- 3.3.2 Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 3.4.1 to the contrary, whenever a special meeting of Master Members is called by Master Members representing at least five percent of the total voting power of the Master Association, upon request in writing signed by Master Members entitled to call a meeting of Master Members and delivered by first class, registered or certified mail to the Master Board at the principal office of the Master Association, or delivered to the Master Board in person, it shall be the duty of the Master Board forthwith to cause notice to be given to the Master Members that a meeting will be held at a time fixed by the Master Board not less than 35 nor

more than 90 days after the receipt of the request; provided, however, if a special meeting is called to enforce the obligations under a bond obtained to secure completion of improvements in and to any Master Common Area, pursuant to section 2792.4 of Title 10 of the California Administrative Code, a meeting will be held at a time fixed by the Master Board not less than 35 nor more than 45 days after receipt of the request. If said notice is not given within 20 days after receipt of the request, the Master Members entitled to call the meeting may fix the date and time of the meeting and give notice thereof in the manner provided by these Master Bylaws. The date of any meeting fixed by Master Members as hereinabove provided shall be at such time in the future as will permit adherence to the notice requirements set forth in Paragraph 3.4.

3.4 Notice of Meetings.

- 3.4.1 Written notice for meetings called by the Master Board, whether annual or special, shall be given to Master Members who are entitled to vote at such meetings not less than ten days nor more than 90 days before the date of such meeting; provided, however, that, if notice is given by mail and the notice is not mailed by first-class, registered or certified mail, notice shall be given not less than 20 days before the meeting. Notice of any meeting of Master Members, whether annual or special and whether called by the Master Board or by Master Members entitled to call a meeting of Master Members, shall specify the place, the date and time of the meeting and (i) in case of a special meeting, the general nature of the business to be transacted and that no other business may be transacted or (ii) in the case of an annual meeting, those matters which the Master Board, at the time notice is given, intends to present for action by the Master Members; provided, however, notwithstanding the foregoing, any proper matter may be presented for action by the Master Members at an annual meeting. The notice of any meeting at which directors are to be elected shall include the names of all those who are nominees for election to the Master Board at the time notice is given to Master Members.
- 3.4.2 Notices of meetings, whether annual or special, shall be given by the Master Board, or in the case of neglect or refusal by the Master Board, by any officer, director or Master Member. All notices shall be given either personally or by mail sent to the address of each Master Member appearing on the books of the Master Association or to the address supplied by it to the Master Association for the purpose of receiving notice. A notice mailed or delivered as part of a newsletter, magazine or other circular regularly sent to Master Members shall constitute written notice when addressed and mailed or delivered to the Master Member.

3.4.3 When a Master Members' meeting, either annual or special, is adjourned to another time or place, notice of the adjourned meeting need not be given if the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting which is adjourned. A meeting adjourned for lack of quorum by those in attendance shall be set for a date not less than 5 days nor more than 30 days from the original meeting date. If (i) a time and place for the adjourned meeting are not fixed by those in attendance at the original meeting, (ii) for any reason a new date is fixed for the adjourned meeting after adjournment or (iii) the adjournment is for more than 30 days, notice of the time and place of the adjourned meeting shall be given to Master Members in the manner prescribed for regular meetings. At the adjourned meeting the Master Association may transact any business which might have been transacted at the original meeting.

3.5 Consent to, Approval of or Attendance at Master Members' Meetings.

3.5.1 The transactions of any meeting of Master Members, whether annual or special, however called and noticed, shall be valid as though having occurred at a meeting duly held after regular call and notice if a quorum is present either in person or by proxy, and if, either before or after the meeting, each Master Member entitled to vote thereat not present in person or by proxy, signs a (i) written consent to the holding of such meeting or (ii) written approval of the minutes thereof. All such consents or approvals shall be filed with the records of the Master Association or made part of the minutes of the meeting. Attendance of a Master Member at a meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of and presence at such meeting, except when the Master Member objects, at the beginning of the meeting, to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Attendance at a meeting is not a waiver of any right to object to the consideration of matters required to be included in the notice but not so included, if such objection is expressly made at the meeting.

3.6 Action by Written Ballot.

3.6.1 Any action which may be taken at any regular or special meeting of Master Members, except for an election in which positions on the Master Board are to be filled, may be taken without a meeting if the Master Association distributes a written ballot to every Master Member entitled to vote on the matter. Such ballot shall (i) set forth the proposed action, (ii) indicate the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirement, (iii) provide an opportunity to specify approval or disapproval of any proposal (iv) state the percentage of approvals necessary to pass the proposal, (v) provide that where the Master Member solicited specifies a choice with respect to

the proposal the vote shall be cast in accordance therewith and (vi) provide a reasonable time within which to return the ballot to the Master Association. Approval by written ballot pursuant to this paragraph shall be valid only when the number of votes cast by ballot within the time period specified equals or exceeds the quorum required to be present at a meeting authorizing the action and the number of approvals equals or exceeds the number of votes that would be required to approve at a meeting at which the total number of votes cast was the same as the number of votes cast by ballot. A written ballot may not be revoked.

3.6.2 Ballots shall be solicited in a manner consistent with the requirements of Paragraph 3.4.2. All such solicitations shall indicate the number of responses needed to meet the quorum requirement and shall state the percentage of approvals necessary to pass the measure submitted. The solicitation must specify the time by which the ballot must be received in order to be counted.

3.7 Quorum.

- 3.7.1 The presence in person or by proxy of Master Members entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power of the Master Association shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of Master Members for the transaction of business thereat. Master Members present at a duly called or held meeting at which a quorum is present may continue to do business until adjournment, notwithstanding the withdrawal of enough Master Members to leave less than a quorum, provided any action taken (other than adjournment) is approved by at least a majority of the number of Master Members required to constitute a quorum.
- 3.7.2 In the absence of a quorum at the commencement of any meeting of Master Members, the Master Members entitled to vote thereat, present in person or by proxy, shall have the power, by the vote of a majority of the votes represented, to adjourn the meeting from time to time until the requisite number of Master Members shall be present or represented, but no other business may be transacted; provided, however, that any such adjournment shall be to a date not less than five and not more than 30 days from the date of the originally scheduled meeting. At such adjourned meeting the quorum requirement shall be reduced to the presence in person or by proxy of Master Members entitled to exercise 25 percent of the voting power of the Master Association. If the requisite number of Master Members constituting the reduced quorum shall be present or represented, any business may be transacted which might have been transacted at the meeting as originally noticed.

ARTICLE 4 - Voting Rights

4.1 Master Members' Right to Vote.

4.1.1 Only persons who are Master Members of the Master Association shall be entitled to vote at a meeting of Master Members. The voting rights of Master Members shall be as set forth in Article 2 of the Master Declaration.

4.2 Required Vote; Cumulative Voting.

- 4.2.1 When a quorum is present at any regular or special meeting of Master Members, the affirmative vote of a majority of the Master Members of each voting class of the Master Association present at such meeting shall be required for Master Members to transact any business thereat, except (i) where the item of business is the enforcement of the obligations under a bond or other arrangement pursuant to the Article of the Master Declaration entitled "Developer/Builder's Security for Its Obligations" or (ii) as may be otherwise provided in these Master Bylaws, the Master Articles or the Master Declaration.
- 4.2.2 Every Master Member entitled to vote at any election of directors of the Master Association may cumulate its votes and give one candidate a number of votes equal to the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of votes to which it is entitled, or distribute its votes on the same principle among as many candidates as it may desire. Cumulative voting shall be required in all elections in which more than two positions on the Master Board are to be filled. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Master Member shall be entitled to cumulate votes for a candidate or candidates unless such candidate's name or candidates' names have been placed in nomination prior to the voting and the Master Member has given notice at the meeting prior to the voting of the Master Member's intention to cumulate votes. If any one Master Member has given such notice, all Master Members may cumulate their votes for candidates in nomination. The candidates receiving the highest number of votes up to the number of directors to be elected shall be elected directors of the Master Association.
- 4.2.3 For as long as (i) a majority of the voting power of the Master Association resides in Developer or (ii) there are two outstanding classes of Master Members for the purpose of voting as set forth in Article 2 of the Master Declaration, Developer shall not be entitled to vote in the election of one director or 20 percent of the directors to be elected, whichever is greater.

4.3 Proxies.

- 4.3.1 Every Master Member entitled to vote or to authorize action may do so either in person or by one or more agents authorized by a written proxy executed by such Master Member and filed with the Secretary of the Master Association. No proxy shall be valid after the expiration of 11 months from the date thereof unless otherwise provided in the proxy, except that the maximum term of any proxy shall be three years from the date of execution. Every proxy continues in full force and effect until revoked by the person executing it prior to the vote pursuant thereto, except as otherwise provided in this section. Such revocation may be effected by a writing delivered to the Master Association stating that the proxy is revoked or by a subsequent proxy executed by the person executing the prior proxy and presented to the meeting or, as to any meeting, by attendance at such meeting and voting in person by the person executing the proxy. The dates contained on the forms of proxy presumptively determine the order of execution.
- 4.3.2 Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, any revocable proxy covering matters requiring a vote of the Master Members with respect to (i) the removal of directors, (ii) the election of a director(s) to fill any vacancy(ies) on the Master Board, (iii) amendment of the Master Articles, (iv) amendment of these Master Bylaws repealing, restricting, creating or expanding proxy rights, (v) the winding up and dissolving of the Master Association or (vi) any other matters specifically set forth in California Corporations Code section 7613(g) is not valid as to such matters unless it sets forth the general nature of the matter to be voted on.
- 4.3.3 A proxy is not revoked by the death or incapacity of the maker or the termination of a membership as a result thereof unless, before the vote is counted, written notice of such death or incapacity is received by the Master Association.

ARTICLE 5 - Directors; Management

5.1 General Powers.

5.1.1 Subject to the limitations of the Master Declaration, of the Master Articles, of these Master Bylaws and of the laws of the State of California as to action to be authorized or approved by Master Members, all Master Association powers shall be exercised by or under authority of, and the business and affairs of the Master Association shall be controlled by, the Master Board. The Master Board may delegate the management of the activities of the Master Association to any person or persons, management company or committee however composed, provided that the activities and affairs of the Master Association shall be managed

and all Master Association powers shall be exercised under the ultimate direction of the Master Board.

5.2 Specific Powers.

- 5.2.1 In addition to the general powers described above, the Master Board shall have the following specific powers:
- (i) To adopt regulations not inconsistent with the provisions of the Master Declaration and these Master Bylaws, including, but not limited to, rules and regulations relating to the use of and activities permitted in any Master Common Area.
- (ii) To maintain bank account(s) for funds coming under the control of the Master Association.
- (iii) To levy regular and special assessments and otherwise act as set forth in, and subject to the provisions of, the Master Declaration, the Master Articles and these Master Bylaws.
- (iv) To enforce the provisions of the Master Articles, the Master Declaration, these Master Bylaws, and any other instruments for the management and control of the Master Project; however, nothing contained in this Article shall be construed to prohibit enforcement of the Master Declaration by any Owner or Master Member.
- (v) To contract for and maintain (a) fire, casualty, liability, worker's compensation, medical, hospital, directors' and officers' liability and other insurance insuring Owners, Master Members, directors and officers of the Master Association and other persons and (b) bonds of directors and other persons.
- (vi) To contract, provide and pay for (a) maintenance, utility, gardening and other services benefiting any Master Common Area, (b) employment of persons necessary for operation of any building and (c) legal and accounting services.
- (vii) To contract for and purchase tools, equipment, materials, supplies and other personal property and services for (a) maintenance and repair of any Master Common Area and (b) improvements to the Master Project.
- (viii) To contract for and pay for reconstruction of any portion(s) of the Master Project damaged or destroyed.
- (ix) To enter at all reasonable times, by it or its agents or independent contractors, any Unit when necessary in connection with maintenance, construction or emergency repair as to which the Master Association has rights hereunder.

- (x) To pay taxes which would be a lien upon the entire Master Project or any Master Common Area or any portion thereof, and to pay and discharge any lien or encumbrance levied against the entire Master Project or any Master Common Area or any portion thereof.
- (xi) To make available to any Owner, any first mort-gage, and the holders, insurers and guarantors of a first mort-gage or deed of trust on any Unit, current copies of the Master Articles, Master Bylaws, Master Declaration, rules governing the Master Project, and other books, records and financial statements of the Master Association. The Master Board shall make the aforementioned documents available for inspection, upon request, during normal business hours or under other reasonable circumstances.
- (xii) To prosecute or defend, in the name of the Master Association, any action affecting or relating to any Master Common Area, or any action in which all of the Owners have an interest in the subject thereof.
- (xiii) To suspend temporarily the right of an Owner to use any recreational facilities within any Master Common Area for default in the payment of any regular or special assessment levied by the Master Association pursuant to the Master Declaration, or for violating any regulations adopted by or established by the Master Board to govern the use of and activity in any Master Common Area or for breaching any provision of the Master Declaration, the Master Articles or these Master Bylaws. Any suspension must be done in good faith and in a fair and reasonable manner. The Owner must be given 15 days' prior notice of the suspension. Notice must set forth reasons for the suspension and may be given by any method reasonably calculated to provide actual notice. Any notice given by mail must be given by first-class, registered or certified mail sent to the last address of the Owner shown on the Master Association's records. The Owner must be provided an opportunity to be heard, orally or in writing, not less than five days before the effective date of the suspension by a properly convened meeting of the Master Board.
- (xiv) To impose a reasonable monetary fine(s), if provided for in the Master Declaration or these Master Bylaws, upon an Owner for any breach of any of (a) the limitations, restrictions, conditions or covenants set forth in the Master Declaration (other than a breach by failure to pay an assessment(s)), (b) the provisions of the Master Articles or these Master Bylaws or (c) the rules and regulations adopted by the Master Board pursuant to the Master Declaration, the Master Articles or these Master Bylaws. The imposition of such fine(s) must be done in good faith and in a fair and reasonable manner.

The Owner must be given 15 days' prior notice of the imposition of a fine(s). Notice must set forth reasons for the imposition of a fine(s) and may be given by any method reasonably calculated to provide actual notice. Any notice given by mail must be given by first-class, registered or certified mail sent to the last address of the Owner shown on the Master Association's records. The Owner must be provided an opportunity to be heard, orally or in writing, not less than five days before the effective date of the imposition of a fine(s) by a properly convened meeting of the Master Board.

- (xv) To cause the Master Association to act as an Administrator under any Village Maintenance Agreement which may become a part of the Master Declaration.
- 5.2.2 No right or power conferred on the Master Board in this Article shall be construed as a duty, obligation or disability charged upon the Master Board or any director. If any right or power herein granted be exercised, any directors so exercising or voting for such exercise shall act in good faith, in a manner such director believes to be in the best interests of the Master Association and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances.
- 5.2.3 Any contract entered into, or instrument executed, by any two or more directors pursuant to resolution of the Master Board shall be (i) valid and subsisting according to the tenor of such contract or instrument and (ii) a charge upon all cash, bank accounts and other personal property under the control of the Master Board. So long as it acts within the scope of its authority as a director, no director shall have any personal liability under any such contract or instrument; however, the foregoing shall not be construed to relieve any director who is also an Owner from liability as such Owner.
- 5.2.4 Anything in this Article to the contrary notwithstanding, unless the Master Members have approved such action (i) by a vote or written ballot of Master Members entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power in each of the two voting classes of the Master Association or (ii) upon cessation of one of the two voting classes, by a vote or written ballot of Master Members entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power in the remaining voting class, provided that said vote or written ballot shall include the votes of a majority of the Master Members other than Developer, the Master Board may not:
- (i) Enter into a contract with a third person for materials and/or services benefiting any Master Common Area or the Master Association for a term in excess of one year, except any:
- (a) Management contract, the terms of which have been approved by the FHA or VA;

- (b) Contract with a public utility company if the rates charged for the materials or services are regulated by the Public Utilities Commission; provided, however, that the term of the contract shall not exceed the shortest term for which the supplier will contract at the regulated rate;
- (c) Prepaid casualty and/or liability insurance policy which does not exceed three years' duration provided that such policy permits for short rate cancellation by the insured; and
- (d) Lease agreement for laundry room fixtures and equipment not to exceed five year's duration provided that the lessor under the agreement is not an entity in which Developer has a direct or indirect interest of 10 percent or more.
- (e) Agreements for cable television services and equipment or satellite dish television services and equipment of not to exceed five years duration provided that the supplier is not an entity in which the Developer, Rancho, Home Building or a Builder has a direct or indirect ownership interest of 10 percent or more.
- (ii) Incur aggregate expenditures for capital improvements to any Master Common Area in any fiscal year in excess of five percent of the budgeted gross expenses of the Master Association for such fiscal year, except as provided in the Master Declaration;
- (iii) Sell, during any fiscal year of the Master Association, property of the Master Association having an aggregate fair market value greater than five percent of the budgeted gross expenses of the Master Association for that fiscal year;
- (iv) Fill a vacancy on the Master Board created by the removal of a director; or
- (v) Pay any compensation to any director or officer of the Master Association for services performed in the conduct of the Master Association's business; however, the Master Board may reimburse any such director or officer for expenses incurred by it in carrying on the business of the Master Association.
- 5.2.5 Anything contained in this Paragraph 5.2 to the contrary notwithstanding, the Master Board shall not have the power to authorize or approve any contract for the professional management of the Master Project, or any contract providing for the services of Developer, Rancho, Home Building or a Builder, which (i) does not permit the Master Association to terminate (a) for cause on 30 days' written notice and (b) without cause, or payment of a termination fee, on 90 days' or less written notice and/or (ii) has a term greater than three years. Further, the Master Board shall not have the power to grant to anyone

easements or use rights which affect any Master Common Area; provided, however, that the Master Board may grant easements over, upon, under and across any Master Common Area for utilities, roads and other purposes which are reasonably necessary to the ongoing development and operation of the Master Project. Except as provided herein, no contract with the Master Association negotiated by Developer, Rancho, Home Building or a Builder shall exceed a term of one year unless such contract has been approved by the DRE.

5.2.6 The Master Board may, from time to time and as permitted by law, delegate any of the powers enumerated herein to the officers, committees and employees of the Master Association.

5.3 Number.

5.3.1 The authorized number of directors of the Master Association shall be five until changed by an amendment to this paragraph of these Master Bylaws.

5.4 Nomination, Election and Tenure of Office.

- 5.4.1 Nomination for election to the Master Board shall be made by a Nominating Committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the annual meeting of Master Members. Nominating Committee shall consist of a Chairman, who shall be a member of the Master Board, and one or more Master Members. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Master Board prior to each annual meeting of the Master Members to serve from the close of such annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Master Board as it shall in its discretion determine, but not fewer than the number of vacancies that are to be filled. Such nominations may be made from among Master Members or nonmembers. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the first election to the Master Board, shall receive nominations only from the floor at the first annual meeting of Master Members. Each nominee shall be given a reasonable opportunity to communicate to the Master Members the nominee's qualifications and the reasons for the nominee's candidacy. Each nominee shall be given a reasonable opportunity to solicit votes and the Master Members shall be given a reasonable opportunity to choose among the nominees.
- 5.4.2 The director(s) shall be elected by secret written ballot at the annual meeting of Master Members. At the first meeting for the election of directors, the Master Members shall elect three directors for a term of one year and two directors for a term of two years; and, at each annual meeting thereafter, the Master Members shall elect director(s) for a term of two years to succeed those director(s) whose terms have expired. Each director shall serve until his successor is elected and has qualified or until his earlier resignation or removal. The term of office for director(s) shall begin immediately after their

election. If any annual meeting is not held or the director(s) are not elected thereat, the director(s) may be elected at any special meeting of Master Members held for that purpose.

In advance of any meeting of Master Members, the Master Board may appoint inspectors of election to act at the meeting and any adjournment thereof. If inspectors of election are not so appointed, or if any persons so appointed fail to appear or refuse to act, the chairman of any meeting of Master Members may, and on the request of any Master Member or a Master Member's proxy shall, appoint inspectors of election (or persons to replace those who so fail or refuse) at the meeting. number of inspectors shall be either one or three. If appointed at a meeting at the request of one or more Master Members or proxies, the majority of Master Members represented in person or by proxy shall determine whether one or three inspectors are to be appointed. If there are three inspectors of election, the decision, act or certificate of a majority of inspectors of election is effective in all respects as the decision, act or certificate of all. The inspectors of election shall determine the number of memberships outstanding and the voting power of each, the number represented at the meeting, the existence of a quorum and the authenticity, validity and effect of proxies, receive votes, ballots or consents, hear and determine all challenges and questions in any way arising in connection with the right to vote, count and tabulate all votes or consents, determine when the polls shall close, determine the result and do such acts as may be proper to conduct the election or vote with fairness to all Master Members. In the case of any action by written ballot, the Master Board may similarly appoint inspectors of election to act with powers and duties as set forth in this paragraph.

5.5 Vacancies.

- 5.5.1 A vacancy or vacancies shall be deemed to exist in any of the following instances: (i) the death, resignation or removal of any director, (ii) the authorized number of directors shall be increased by amendment to these Master Bylaws and the Master Members shall fail to elect the additional director(s), (iii) Master Members shall fail at any time to elect the full number of authorized directors, or (iv) any director shall fail to qualify to serve in the office within 30 days after notice of its election. The Master Board may declare vacant the office of a director who has been declared of unsound mind by a final order of court or convicted of a felony.
- 5.5.2 Vacancies in the Master Board may be filled by a majority of the remaining directors, whether or not less than a quorum, or, if the number of directors then in office is less than a quorum, by (i) the unanimous written consent of the directors then in office, (ii) the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors then in office at a meeting held pursuant to notice or waivers of notice complying with Paragraph 5.9.3 with

respect to a regular meeting or Paragraph 5.10.3 with respect to a special meeting, or (iii) a sole remaining director; provided, however, that vacancies in the Master Board resulting from the removal of directors may only be filled by a vote of the Master Members as provided in the Article hereof entitled "Voting Rights." Each director so elected shall hold office until its successor is elected at an annual, regular or special meeting of Master Members or until its earlier resignation or removal.

- 5.5.3 Master Members may at any time elect a director to fill any vacancy not filled by the Master Board and may elect additional directors at such time as an amendment to these Master Bylaws is adopted which authorizes an increase in the number of directors.
- 5.5.4 Any director may resign effective upon giving written notice to the chairman of the Master Board, the President, the Secretary or the Master Board, unless the notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such resignation. If the Master Board accepts the resignation of a director tendered to take effect at a future time, the Master Board, or if the Master Board should fail to act, the Master Members, shall have power to elect a successor to take office when the resignation shall become effective.
- 5.5.5 No reduction of the authorized number of directors shall have the effect of removing any director prior to the expiration of its term of office.

5.6 Removal of Directors.

- 5.6.1 The entire Master Board or any individual director may be removed from office by an affirmative vote (or written ballot) of Master Members holding a majority of the voting power in each voting class entitled to vote at an election of directors; provided, however, unless the entire Master Board is removed, an individual director shall not be removed prior to the expiration of its term of office when the votes cast against removal would be sufficient to elect such director if voted cumulatively at an election at which the same total number of votes were cast and the entire number of directors authorized at the time of the director's most recent election were then being elected. If any director(s) is so removed, a new director(s) may be elected at the same meeting.
- 5.6.2 Notwithstanding the foregoing, a director who, pursuant to Paragraph 4.2.4 hereof, has been elected solely by the votes of Master Members other than Developer may be removed from office prior to expiration of its term of office only by the vote of at least a majority of the voting power residing in Master Members other than Developer.

5.7 Place of Meetings.

5.7.1 Meetings of the Master Board shall be held within the Master Project.

5.8 Organizational Meetings; Notice.

5.8.1 Annual organizational meetings of the Master Board shall be held immediately following the adjournment of the annual meetings of Master Members or at such other date, time and place as the Master Board may designate by resolution. No notice of organizational meetings need be given to directors except that written notice setting forth the date, time and place of said meeting shall be posted at a prominent place (or places) within the Master Project at least four days prior to the scheduled date of said meeting.

5.9 Other Regular Meetings; Notice.

- 5.9.1 Regular meetings of the Master Board, other than the annual organizational meeting, shall be held at such date, time and place within the Master Project as may be agreed upon from time to time by the Master Board except that said meetings shall be held at least every six months if business to be transacted by the Master Board does not justify more frequent meetings; or may be called at any time by the chairman of the Master Board or the president, any vice president, secretary or by any two directors of the Master Association. If said date shall fall upon a holiday such meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business day thereafter.
- 5.9.2 Notice of the date, time and place of a regular meeting shall be given to each of the members of the Master Board at least four days before such meeting by (i) telephone, (ii) telegraph, (iii) written notice personally delivered or (iv) letter, charges prepaid, addressed to a director at the address of such director as it is shown upon the records of the Master Association or, if it is not shown on such records or is not readily ascertainable, at the place where meetings of the Master Board are regularly held. Written notice of the resolution, if any, establishing a date of the month, the time and place of a regular meeting shall also be given to each director. Notices of the date, time and place of a regular meeting shall also be posted at a prominent place (or places) within the Master Project at least four days before the date of the meeting.
- 5.9.3 Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director who has signed a waiver of notice or a written consent to holding the meeting or an approval of the minutes thereof, whether before or after the meeting, or who attends the meeting without protesting prior thereto or at its commencement, the lack of notice to such director. All such waivers, consents and approvals shall be filed with the Master Association records or made a part of the minutes of the meetings.

5.10 Special Meetings; Notice.

- 5.10.1 Special meetings of the Master Board for any purpose or purposes shall be called by written notice signed by the President or by any two directors other than the President.
- 5.10.2 Notice of the date, time and place of a special meeting shall be given to each of the members of the Master Board by (i) telephone, (ii) telegraph, (iii) written notice personally delivered or (iv) letter, charges prepaid, addressed to a director at the address of such director as it is shown upon the records of the Master Association or if it is not shown on such records or is not readily ascertainable, at the place where meetings of the Master Board are regularly held. Such notice of a special meeting shall set forth the general nature of the business to be considered thereat. In case such notice is mailed, it shall be deposited in the United States mail at least four days prior to the date of the holding of the meeting. In case such notice is delivered personally or by telephone or telegraph, it shall be so delivered at least 72 hours prior to the date of the holding of the meeting. Such mailing, telephoning, telegraphing or personal delivery shall be due, legal and proper notice to such director.
- 5.10.3 Notice of a special meeting need not be given to any director who signed a waiver of notice or a written consent to holding of the meeting or an approval of the minutes thereof, whether before or after the meeting, or who attend the meeting without protesting prior thereto or at its commencement, the lack of notice to such director. All such waivers, consents or approvals shall be filed with the Master Association records or made a part of the minutes of the meetings.
- 5.10.4 Written notice of every special meeting of the Master Board, specifying the date, time and place of the meeting and the general nature of the business to be considered, shall be posted at a prominent place (or places) within the Master Project at least 72 hours prior to the scheduled time of such meeting.

5.11 Adjournment.

5.11.1 A majority of the directors present at a meeting of the Master Board, whether or not a quorum is present at such meeting, may adjourn the meeting to another date, time and place. If the meeting is adjourned for more than 24 hours, notice of any adjournment to another date, time or place shall be given prior to the time of such adjourned meeting to the directors who are not present at the time of the adjournment.

5.12 Quorum; Required Vote.

5.12.1 A majority of the authorized number of directors as designated by these Master Bylaws shall be necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The action of a

majority of the directors present at any meeting at which there is a quorum, when duly assembled, is valid as a corporate act; provided that a meeting at which a quorum is initially present may continue to transact business notwithstanding the withdrawal of directors, if any action taken is approved by at least a majority of the required quorum for such meeting. A majority of the directors present at any meeting at which a quorum is not present may adjourn from time to time, but may not transact any business.

5.13 Open Meetings; Executive Sessions.

- 5.13.1 All organizational, regular and special meetings of the Master Board shall be open to all Master Members; however, Master Members who are not on the Master Board may not participate in deliberations or discussions at any such meeting unless expressly so authorized by the vote of a majority of a quorum of the Master Board.
- 5.13.2 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Article, the Master Board may, with the approval of a majority of a quorum thereof, adjourn any meeting and reconvene in executive session to discuss, consider or vote upon (i) items related to or involving personnel, (ii) litigation in which the Master Association is or may become involved and/or (iii) matters of a similar nature, provided that the nature of any and all such business to be considered in executive session shall first be announced in the open meeting.

5.14 Action by Unanimous Written Consent.

- 5.14.1 Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Master Board may be taken without a meeting, if all members of the Master Board shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such written consent or consents shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Master Board. Such action by written consent shall have the same force and effect as a unanimous vote of the directors.
- 5.14.2 If the Master Board takes action by unanimous written consent as provided in Paragraph 5.14.1 above, an explanation of such action shall be posted at a prominent place or places within the Master Project within three days after all of the written consents of the directors have been received by the Secretary of the Master Association.

ARTICLE 6 - Officers

6.1 Officers.

6.1.1 The officers of the Master Association shall be a president, vice president, secretary and chief financial officer. The Master Association may also have, at the discretion of the Master Board, a chairman of the Master Board, one or more

additional vice presidents, one or more assistant secretaries, one or more assistant chief financial officers, and such other officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 6.3. Any two or more offices, except those of president and secretary, may be held by the same person.

6.2 Appointment.

6.2.1 Each officer of the Master Association, except such officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Paragraphs 6.3 or 6.5 shall be chosen annually by the Master Board, and shall hold office until a successor shall be appointed or until the earlier resignation, removal or disqualification of such officer.

6.3 Subordinate Officers.

6.3.1 The Master Board may at any time appoint, or may designate an officer to appoint, such other officers as the business of the Master Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority and perform such duties as are provided in these Master Bylaws or as the Master Board may from time to time determine.

6.4 Removal and Resignation.

- 6.4.1 Any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by the Master Board; and additionally, any subordinate officers not appointed by the Master Board may be removed by any officer upon whom such power of removal has been conferred by the Master Board.
- 6.4.2 Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Master Board, or to the President or to the Secretary of the Master Association. Any such resignation shall take effect as of the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

6.5 Vacancies.

6.5.1 A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these Master Bylaws for regular appointments to such office.

6.6 Chairman of the Master Board.

6.6.1 The chairman of the Master Board, if there be such an officer, shall, if present, preside at all meetings of the Master Board, and exercise and perform such other powers and duties as may be from time to time assigned to the chairman by the Master Board or prescribed by these Master Bylaws.

6.7 President.

6.7.1 Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given by the Master Board to the chairman of the Master Board, if there be such an officer, the president shall be the general manager and the chief executive officer of the Master Association and, subject to the control of the Master Board, shall have the general power to supervise, direct and control the business and officers of the Master Association. The president shall preside at all meetings of the Master Members and in the absence of the chairman of the Master Board, or if there be none, at all meetings of the Master Board. The president shall be an ex officio member of all standing committees and shall have the general powers and duties of management usually vested in the office of president of a corporation and shall have such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the Master Board or these Master Bylaws.

6.8 Vice President(s).

6.8.1 In the absence or disability of the president, the vice president or, if there is more than one vice president, the vice presidents in order of their rank as fixed by the Master Board (or if not ranked, the vice president designated by the Master Board), shall perform all the duties of the president, and when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions upon the president. The vice president(s) so performing the duties of the president shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as from time to time may be prescribed by the Master Board or these Master Bylaws.

6.9 Secretary and Assistant Secretary.

- 6.9.1 The secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal office of the Master Association or such other place as the Master Board may order, a book of minutes of all meetings of the Master Board and Master Members showing (i) the date, time and place of holding; (ii) whether regular or special, and if special, how authorized; (iii) the notice thereof given; (iv) the names of those present at the Master Board meetings; (v) the number of Master Members present or represented at the Master Members' meetings; and (vi) the proceedings thereof.
- 6.9.2 The secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal office of the Master Association or at such other place as the Master Board may designate, a membership book showing the names and addresses of the Master Members and the date on which membership ceased.
- 6.9.3 The secretary shall (i) give, or cause to be given, notice of all the meetings of the Master Members and of the Master Board required by these Master Bylaws or by statute to be given, (ii) keep any seal of the Master Association in safe custody and (iii) have such other powers and perform such other

duties as may be prescribed by the Master Board or these Master Bylaws.

6.9.4 The assistant secretary, if there shall be such an officer or if there be more than one, the assistant secretaries in the order determined by the Master Board (or if there be no such determination, then in the order of their appointment), shall, in the absence of the secretary or in the event of the inability or refusal of the secretary to act, perform the duties and exercise the powers of the secretary and shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Master Board may from time to time prescribe.

6.10 Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Chief Financial Officer.

- 6.10.1 The chief financial officer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct accounts of the properties and business transactions of the Master Association, including accounts of its assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses and surplus. The books of account shall at all reasonable times be open to inspection by any director.
- 6.10.2 The chief financial officer shall deposit all moneys and other valuables in the name and to the credit of the Master Association with such depositories as may be designated by the Master Board. The chief financial officer shall disburse the funds of the Master Association as may be ordered by the Master Board, shall render to the president and Master Board, whenever they request it, an account of all transactions by the chief financial officer and of the financial condition of the Master Association, and shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Master Board or these Master Bylaws.
- 6.10.3 If required by the Master Board, the chief financial officer shall give the Master Association a bond in such sum and with such surety or sureties as shall be satisfactory to the Master Board for (i) the faithful performance of the duties of the chief financial officer's office and (ii) the restoration to the Master Association of all books, papers, vouchers, money and other property, of whatever kind belonging to the Master Association and in the possession or under control of the chief financial officer upon the death, resignation or removal from office of the chief financial officer.
- 6.10.4 The assistant chief financial officer, if there shall be such an officer or if there shall be more than one, the assistant chief financial officers in the order determined by the Master Board (or if there be no such determination, then in the order of their appointment), shall, in the absence of the chief financial officer or in the event of the inability or refusal of the chief financial officer to act, perform the duties and

exercise the powers of the chief financial officer and shall perform such other duties and have such other powers as the Master Board may from time to time prescribe.

ARTICLE 7 - Committees

7.1 Architectural Committee.

7.1.1 There may be an Architectural Committee for the purposes of performing such duties as may be delegated to it by the Master Board on matters of structural and landscaping architecture and design within the Master Project.

7.2 Executive and Other Master Board Committees.

7.2.1 The Master Board may by resolution adopted by a majority of the number of directors then in office, provided that a quorum is present, create an Executive Committee, and such other committees as may be necessary from time to time, each consisting of two or more directors and with such powers as it may designate, consistent with the Master Articles, these Master Bylaws and the laws of the State of California. Appointments to such committees shall be by a majority vote of the directors in office at the time of appointment. The Master Board may appoint one or more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent member at any meeting of the committee. Such committees shall hold office at the pleasure of the Master Board and need not be reappointed annually.

7.3 Nominating and Other Committees.

7.3.1 The Master Board shall appoint a Nominating Committee, as provided in these Master Bylaws. In addition, the Master Board may appoint such other committees, composed of directors or nondirectors or both, as it deems, appropriate in carrying out the purposes and business of the Master Association.

ARTICLE 8 - Master Association Records and Reports; Inspection

8.1 Records.

8.1.1 The Master Association shall maintain adequate and correct accounts, books and records of its business and properties. All such books, records and accounts shall be kept at its principal place of business in the State of California or at such other place as may be designated by the Master Board from time to time.

8.2 Inspection of Books and Records.

8.2.1 The Master Member register, the books of account, minutes of proceedings of the Master Association, of the Master

Board, of the Executive Committee and of any other committees of the Master Association shall (upon the written demand of any Master Member) be open to inspection and copying by such Master Member or its duly appointed representative at any reasonable time, for a purpose reasonably related to such Master Member's interests as a Master Member, at the office of the Master Association or at such other place within the Master Project as the Master Board shall prescribe. All of the foregoing documents, books and records shall be exhibited at any time when required by the demand at any Master Members' meeting of at least 10 percent of the Master Members represented at such meeting.

- 8.2.2 Each director of the Master Association shall have an absolute right, at any reasonable time, to inspect and copy the aforementioned documents, books and records and to inspect the physical properties owned or controlled by the Master Association.
- 8.2.3 An inspection demand other than at a Master Members' meeting shall be made in writing upon the president, secretary or assistant secretary of the Master Association. The Master Board shall establish reasonable rules with respect to (i) hours and days of the week when such an inspection may be made and (ii) payment of the cost of reproducing copies of such documents, books and records requested by a Master Member or director.

8.3 Certification and Inspection of Master Bylaws.

8.3.1 The original or a copy of these Master Bylaws as amended or otherwise altered to date, certified by the secretary, shall be open to inspection by Master Members at the Master Association's principal office at all reasonable times during office hours.

8.4 Checks, Drafts, Contracts, Etc.

8.4.1 The president shall sign all leases, mortgages, deeds and other written instruments and shall cosign all checks and promissory notes of the Master Association. The chief financial officer shall sign all checks and promissory notes of the Master Association.

8.5 Contracts, Etc.; How Executed.

8.5.1 The Master Board, except as otherwise provided in these Master Bylaws, may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Master Association. Such authority may be general or confined to specific instances. Unless so authorized by the Master Board, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Master Association bŷ any contract or engagement, or to pledge its credit, or to render it liable for any purpose or to any amount.

8.6 Annual Budget.

8.6.1 The Master Board shall cause a budget for each fiscal year to be regularly prepared and distributed to all Master Members, not less than 45 days nor more than 60 days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year of the Master Association, regardless of the number of Master Members or the amount of assets of the Master Association. The budget shall contain the following information: (i) the estimated revenue and expenses of the Master Association on an accrual basis; (ii) the amount of the total cash reserves of the Master Association currently available for replacement or major repair of any Master Common Area and for contingencies: (iii) an itemized estimate of the remaining life of, and the method of funding to defer repair, replacement or additions to, major components of any Master Common Area for which the Master Association is responsible and (iv) a general statement setting forth the procedures used by the Master Board in calculating and establishing reserves to defray the cost of repair, replacement or addition to, major components of any Master Common Area for which the Master Association is responsible.

8.7 Initial Financial Report.

8.7.1 The Master Board shall cause to be prepared an initial financial report, which report shall include (i) a balance sheet as of an accounting date (the "Accounting Date") which is the last day of the month closest in time to six months from the date of closing of the first sale of a Unit in the Master Project to a purchaser (other than Developer, Rancho, Home Building or a Builder) and (ii) an operating statement for the period from the date of the first closing to the Accounting Date, which operating statement shall include a schedule of assessments received and receivable itemized by the Unit number and by the name of the Owner so assessed. The initial financial report shall be distributed to each Master Member within 60 days from the Accounting Date.

8.8 Annual Report.

8.8.1 The Master Board shall cause to be prepared and distributed to all Master Members, within 120 days after the close of each fiscal year, an annual report, which shall include: (i) a balance sheet as of the end of the fiscal year; (ii) an operating (income) statement for the fiscal year; (iii) a statement of changes in financial position for the fiscal year; (iv) any information required to be reported under Section 8322 of the California Corporations Code; (v) a statement of the place where the names and addresses of the current Master Members are located; and (vi) for any fiscal year in which the gross income to the Master Association (including all regular and special assessments levied upon all Owners during the fiscal year) exceeds \$75,000, a copy of a review of the annual report prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles by a

licensee of the California State Board of Accountancy. If the annual report is not prepared by an independent accountant, it shall be accompanied by the certificate of an authorized officer of the Master Association that the statements were prepared from the books and records of the Master Association without independent audit or review. For any fiscal year in which the annual report is not prepared by an independent accountant, the statements prepared in connection with the annual report shall be prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, or some other basis of accounting which reasonably sets forth the assets and liabilities and the income and expenses of the Master Association and discloses the accounting basis used in the preparation. Upon written request of a Master Member, the Master Board shall promptly cause the most recent annual report to be sent to the requesting Master Member.

8.9 Statement of Policies and Practices.

8.9.1 The Master Board shall cause to be distributed to all Master Members and Owners, within 60 days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, a statement of the Master Association's policies and practices in enforcing its remedies against Owners for defaults in the payment of regular and special assessments, including the recording and foreclosing of liens against Units.

ARTICLE 9 - Amendments to Master Bylaws

9.1 By Master Members.

9.1.1 New bylaws may be adopted or these Master Bylaws may be repealed or amended (i) by a vote or written ballot of Master Members entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power in each of the two voting classes of the Master Association or (ii) upon cessation of one of the two voting classes, by a vote or written ballot of Master Members entitled to exercise a majority of the voting power in the remaining voting class, provided that said vote or written ballot shall include the votes of a majority of the Master Members other than Developer. So long as there is a Class B membership in the Master Association, any amendment to these Master Bylaws shall require the prior approval of the VA and FHA. A draft of the proposed amendment must be submitted to and approved by the VA prior to the approval by the Master Members.

9.2 No Amendment by Master Board.

9.2.1 Anything contained herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the Master Board shall not have any right or power to adopt, amend or repeal any of these Master Bylaws.

9.3 Record of Amendments.

9.3.1 Whenever an amendment or new bylaw is adopted, a notation of such amendment or new bylaw and a copy of the same

shall be filed in the appropriate place in the book of Master Bylaws with the original Master Bylaws. If any bylaw is repealed, the fact of repeal with the date of the meeting at which the repeal was enacted or the date specified in the written ballots by which the same were to be received by the Master Association shall be stated in said book.

ARTICLE 10 - Supremacy of Master Declaration

No provision of the Master Articles or of these Master Bylaws, and no action of the Master Association, in violation or contravention of any provision of the Master Declaration shall be valid, subsisting or of any effect whatsoever.

THE UNDERSIGNED, being the sole Master Member of the Master Association, as of the date hereinbelow set forth, hereby assents to the foregoing Master Bylaws and adopts the same as these Master Bylaws of the Master Association.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto subscribed its name this 19 day of Mecents, 1966

FIRST AMENDMENT TO BYLAWS OF THE VILLAGES OF RANCHO DEL ORO ASSOCIATION, INC.

ARTICLE 1 - Definitions

The terms used herein shall have the same meanings as given to said terms in the Master Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for the Villages of Rancho Del Oro, recorded September 4, 1986, at File Page 86-388367 of Official Records of San Diego County, California ("Master Declaration"), as it may be amended from time to time.

ARTICLE 2 - Elimination of Cumulative Voting

This First Amendment to Bylaws eliminates from the Master Bylaws of the Master Association all references to the permissibility of cumulative voting. Hereafter, Article 4, Section 4.2 thereof shall be entitled "Required Vote."; Section 4.2.2 is hereby repealed and deleted in its entirety from the Master Bylaws; and the remainder of the first sentence of Section 5.6.1 after the phrase, "entitled to vote at an election of directors", is also repealed and deleted in its entirety from the Master Bylaws. Hereafter, all voting for election and removal of directors of the Master Association shall be pursuant to majority vote of the Master Members.

CERTIFICATION:

The undersigned, being the Secretary of the Master Association, hereby certifies that this First Amendment to Bylaws was approved by vote of the Master Members at their Special Meeting on February 26, 2003, effective as of the date of its approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has hereunto subscribed her/his name on this day of March, 2003.

Secretary